
 
 

BUSINESS, CONSUMER SERVICES AND HOUSING AGENCY   •   GAVIN NEWSOM, GOVERNOR 

DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS  •  PROFESSIONAL FIDUCIARIES BUREAU 
1625 North Market Blvd., Suite S-209, Sacramento, CA 95834 
P (916) 574-7340    |    F (916) 574-8645    |    www.fiduciary.ca.gov 

Professional Fiduciaries Bureau (Bureau) 
Advisory Committee Meeting 
Wednesday, March 9, 2022 

 
Meeting Minutes 

 
Committee Members Present     
Chi Elder, Chair 
Bertha Sanchez Hayden, Vice Chair 
Wendy Hatch  
Elizabeth Ichikawa 
James Moore 
Denise Nelesen 
 
Department of Consumer Affairs (DCA) Staff Present 
Rebecca May, Bureau Chief 
Angela Cuadra, Bureau Program Analyst 
Fred Chan-You, DCA Legal Counsel 
             
            
1) Call to Order – Ms. Elder called the meeting to order at 10:01 a.m. and stated the meeting 

was being held via WebEx with no physical public locations pursuant to Government 
Code section 11133 and Executive Order N-1-22. 
 

2) Roll Call & Establishment of Quorum –  
Ms. Cuadra called roll. Committee members: Ms. Elder, Ms. Sanchez Hayden, Ms. Hatch, 
Ms. Ichikawa, Mr. Moore, and Ms. Nelesen were present via WebEx. A quorum was 
established with six members present. 
 

3) Advisory Committee, Bureau Chief, Staff and Legal Counsel Introductions – Committee 
members, Bureau staff, and legal counsel introduced themselves. 
 

4) Public Comment on Items Not on the Agenda – 
 
Public Comment: None. 
 

5) Reading of the Professional Fiduciaries Bureau Mission Statement –  
 
Ms. May read the Bureau’s mission statement. 
 
Public Comment: None. 
 

6) Discussion and Possible Approval of the Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes from  



December 8, 2021 –   
 
Ms. Hatch requested the date on the minutes be corrected to Wednesday, December 8, 
2021. Ms. Hatch motioned to approve the minutes with the proposed amendment. Ms. 
Nelesen seconded the motion. A vote by roll call was made: Ms. Elder, Ms. Sanchez 
Hayden, Ms. Hatch, Ms. Ichikawa, Mr. Moore, and Ms. Nelesen were in favor. There was 
no discussion from the committee members and the motion carried with six votes. Ms. 
Cuadra stated the minutes would be posted to the website as amended. 

 
Public Comment: None. 

 
7) Update from the Director’s Office –  

 
Mr. Brian Clifford, DCA Executive Office, thanked members for serving the Bureau during 
the pandemic. Mr. Clifford reported regarding the Department’s Covid-19 safety measures 
and remote meetings. Mr. Clifford reported AB 1733 was introduced to allow meetings to 
continue to be held remotely. If the bill does not pass, committee members should be 
prepared for an in-person meeting by providing vaccination status or submitting to testing 
prior to in person meetings. Mr. Clifford also stated that members’ terms will be expiring 
on January 1, 2023, and members may reapply if they would like to continue serving on 
the Advisory Committee. Mr. Clifford provided an update on the DCA Enlightened 
Licensing Project with the purpose of standardizing licensing procedures across boards 
and bureaus. Finally, all members are required to file a form 700 each year.  
 
Ms. Nelesen stated she understood members of the Advisory Committee do not have to 
complete a form 700. Ms. May stated that she would verify and report back. Ms. May 
verified later in the meeting that Professional Fiduciary Bureau Advisory Committee 
Members are not required to file a form 700. 
 
Public Comment: A member of the public asked if public attendees would have to provide 
proof of vaccination or be tested, and Mr. Clifford replied that this requirement applies to 
only Advisory Committee members and Bureau staff. 
 

8) Budget Report –   
Ms. Harmony DeFilippo, Budget Analyst, presented the budget projection report and fund 
condition for the Bureau.  
 
Ms. Hatch expressed concerns about the Bureau’s potential insolvency, asked what the 
solution would be, and if the insolvency is due to requirements placed on the Bureau by 
AB 1194. Ms. May referred to the fund condition which reflects a Budget Change 
Proposal (BCP) in this year’s proposed Governor’s Budget. The BCP requests additional 
spending authority for expenditures directly related to complying with AB 1194, including 
additional staff, and funding Attorney General and Subject Matter Expert costs. Ms. Hatch 



asked if continuing meetings remotely would cover the costs. Ms. May replied that it 
would not be enough and the Bureau is required to follow the Open Meetings Act, 
regardless. Ms. Hatch also asked if this would cause a fee increase, and Ms. May replied 
that it would and stated that although the costs to run the Bureau have increased each 
year, the fees for applicants and licensees have never gone up since the Bureau’s 
inception. Ms. May stated these documents are only projections, and the Bureau is not 
currently spending money to implement AB 1194. The BCP, however, would give the 
Bureau authority to do so. She also stated that the Bureau would have to go through the 
rulemaking process to raise fees.  
 
Ms. Nelesen stated if fees are raised, there may be a decrease in licensees and asked if 
there is another way to raise funds. Ms. May explained as a licensing agency, the funds 
to carryout Bureau mandates are paid solely through application and licensing fees. 
When new laws are imposed, the Bureau is required to develop a plan to ensure the 
requirements are adequately funded. Ms. Elder asked the time frame for a fee increase, 
and Ms. May replied that the regulation process to increase fees will take approximately 
18 to 24 months. 
  
Public Comment: A member of the public commented that the inability to incorporate 
limits the number of persons who will apply to become licensed professional fiduciaries. 
Another member of the public commented if the Bureau decides to require certified public 
accounts (CPAs) be licensed by the Bureau, the only reason would be to collect fees as 
CPAs are already regulated by the Accountancy Board. Additionally, the budget handout 
is not able to be viewed on the internet. Finally, the fee increase will be 50-60% and the 
Bureau will lose licensees. 
 

9) Legislative Update and Discussion –  
 
Mr. Greg Pruden, DCA Legislative Manager, reviewed the legislative calendar and status 
of bills listed on the agenda and explained the difference between a GC-355 and the 
requirements of SB 602. He provided a memo which provided samples of each.  
 
Ms. Hatch thanked Mr. Pruden for his presentation and expressed concerns that SB 602 
infringes on HIPAA laws, the 30-day time frame is insufficient, the cost of follow up on the 
report will be borne by the conservatee, and other general privacy issues. Mr. Pruden 
thanked Ms. Hatch for expressing her concerns.  
 
Ms. Sanchez Hayden also thanked Mr. Pruden for his research and noted there is no 
distinction for requirements between professionals and family members who act as 
conservators.  
 
Public Comment: None. 
 



10) Bureau Updates –  
 

• Application Licensing and Enforcement Statistics – 
 

Ms. May presented newly formatted licensing and enforcement statistics and 
thanked Ms. Elder for her suggestions for improving the statistical data provided by 
the Bureau. Ms. Ichikawa, Mr. Moore, and Ms. Hatch stated the handout was 
easier to follow. 

 
• Outreach Events – Ms. May attended a SacFAST virtual outreach event with Mr. 

Moore on January 1, 2022. Ms. May asked the committee to inform the Bureau of 
any outreach events by email. 
 

• E-Newsletter – Ms. May stated that the most recent newsletter was distributed to 
the interested parties list in January.  

 
• Strategic Plan –Ms. May provided an update on the current strategic plan goals 4, 

5, and 6 and announced that the Bureau will begin planning its 2023 strategic plan 
in the fall and explained the process of developing the new plan. A survey will be 
sent to the interested parties list and the committee members will be contacted to 
complete a phone interview. 

 
• Website Updates – Ms. May stated there were two significant updates to the 

Bureau’s website since the last Advisory Committee meeting. The field for data 
entry of the aggregate value reported by licensees has been updated to allow 
larger values to appear accurately on the Bureau’s website. Additionally, the 
Bureau’s licensing page has been updated to include an option for licensees to 
submit their annual statement by email. 

 
• Internal Consultant Update – Ms. May stated the Bureau is still reviewing this topic 

and this will be brought back at a future meeting. 
 

Public Comment:  None. 
 
11) Strategic Plan Discussion of Recommendations from the Committee for Goal 3: 

Communication and Outreach –: 
 

• Item 3.5 – Collaborate to identify opportunities for participation in outreach events 
to increase awareness of the Bureau and the fiduciary profession. 

Ms. May began the discussion by asking the Advisory Committee members if they 
have ideas on how to enhance the Bureau’s outreach efforts. Ms. Sanchez Hayden 



suggested social workers at hospitals may be a good resource. She also suggested a 
virtual open house may be a powerful way to build connections. Ms. Nelesen 
suggested adult protective services (APS) offices. Ms. Ichikwa suggested contacting 
family justice centers. Ms. Elder agreed with a virtual engagement with agencies who 
serve the elderly population. 

 
Public Comment: None. 

 
12) Proposed Rulemakings Update –  

 
Ms. May reported that the Bureau withdrew the retired and inactive license type regulation 
from the Office of Administrative Law (OAL) to address suggested amendments by OAL. 
The Bureau plans to revise the proposed regulation and refile it with OAL after another 
public comment period.  
 
Public Comment: None. 
 

 
13) Future Agenda Items –  

 
Ms. Cuadra noted there were no agenda items requested to be added to a future agenda. 
 
Public Comment: None. 
 

14)  Future Meeting Dates 
 

• Wednesday, June 22, 2022 
• Wednesday, September 14, 2022 
• Wednesday, December 7, 2022 

 
Committee members did not mention any scheduling conflicts for the future dates and 
were asked to contact Ms. Cuadra if any conflicts arise. 

 
Public Comment: None. 

 
15)  Adjournment – The meeting was adjourned at 11:44 a.m. 
 


	Professional Fiduciaries Bureau (Bureau)
	Advisory Committee Meeting
	Wednesday, March 9, 2022
	Meeting Minutes
	Committee Members Present    
	Chi Elder, Chair
	Bertha Sanchez Hayden, Vice Chair
	Wendy Hatch 
	Elizabeth Ichikawa
	James Moore
	Denise Nelesen
	Department of Consumer Affairs (DCA) Staff Present
	Rebecca May, Bureau Chief
	Angela Cuadra, Bureau Program Analyst
	Fred Chan-You, DCA Legal Counsel
	1) Call to Order – Ms. Elder called the meeting to order at 10:01 a.m. and stated the meeting was being held via WebEx with no physical public locations pursuant to Government Code section 11133 and Executive Order N-1-22.
	2) Roll Call & Establishment of Quorum – 
	Ms. Cuadra called roll. Committee members: Ms. Elder, Ms. Sanchez Hayden, Ms. Hatch, Ms. Ichikawa, Mr. Moore, and Ms. Nelesen were present via WebEx. A quorum was established with six members present.
	3) Advisory Committee, Bureau Chief, Staff and Legal Counsel Introductions – Committee members, Bureau staff, and legal counsel introduced themselves.
	4) Public Comment on Items Not on the Agenda –
	Public Comment: None.
	5) Reading of the Professional Fiduciaries Bureau Mission Statement – 
	Ms. May read the Bureau’s mission statement.
	Public Comment: None.
	6) Discussion and Possible Approval of the Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes from 
	December 8, 2021 –  
	Ms. Hatch requested the date on the minutes be corrected to Wednesday, December 8, 2021. Ms. Hatch motioned to approve the minutes with the proposed amendment. Ms. Nelesen seconded the motion. A vote by roll call was made: Ms. Elder, Ms. Sanchez Hayden, Ms. Hatch, Ms. Ichikawa, Mr. Moore, and Ms. Nelesen were in favor. There was no discussion from the committee members and the motion carried with six votes. Ms. Cuadra stated the minutes would be posted to the website as amended.
	Public Comment: None.
	7) Update from the Director’s Office – 
	Mr. Brian Clifford, DCA Executive Office, thanked members for serving the Bureau during the pandemic. Mr. Clifford reported regarding the Department’s Covid-19 safety measures and remote meetings. Mr. Clifford reported AB 1733 was introduced to allow meetings to continue to be held remotely. If the bill does not pass, committee members should be prepared for an in-person meeting by providing vaccination status or submitting to testing prior to in person meetings. Mr. Clifford also stated that members’ terms will be expiring on January 1, 2023, and members may reapply if they would like to continue serving on the Advisory Committee. Mr. Clifford provided an update on the DCA Enlightened Licensing Project with the purpose of standardizing licensing procedures across boards and bureaus. Finally, all members are required to file a form 700 each year. 
	Ms. Nelesen stated she understood members of the Advisory Committee do not have to complete a form 700. Ms. May stated that she would verify and report back. Ms. May verified later in the meeting that Professional Fiduciary Bureau Advisory Committee Members are not required to file a form 700.
	Public Comment: A member of the public asked if public attendees would have to provide proof of vaccination or be tested, and Mr. Clifford replied that this requirement applies to only Advisory Committee members and Bureau staff.
	8) Budget Report –  
	Ms. Harmony DeFilippo, Budget Analyst, presented the budget projection report and fund condition for the Bureau. 
	Ms. Hatch expressed concerns about the Bureau’s potential insolvency, asked what the solution would be, and if the insolvency is due to requirements placed on the Bureau by AB 1194. Ms. May referred to the fund condition which reflects a Budget Change Proposal (BCP) in this year’s proposed Governor’s Budget. The BCP requests additional spending authority for expenditures directly related to complying with AB 1194, including additional staff, and funding Attorney General and Subject Matter Expert costs. Ms. Hatch asked if continuing meetings remotely would cover the costs. Ms. May replied that it would not be enough and the Bureau is required to follow the Open Meetings Act, regardless. Ms. Hatch also asked if this would cause a fee increase, and Ms. May replied that it would and stated that although the costs to run the Bureau have increased each year, the fees for applicants and licensees have never gone up since the Bureau’s inception. Ms. May stated these documents are only projections, and the Bureau is not currently spending money to implement AB 1194. The BCP, however, would give the Bureau authority to do so. She also stated that the Bureau would have to go through the rulemaking process to raise fees. 
	Ms. Nelesen stated if fees are raised, there may be a decrease in licensees and asked if there is another way to raise funds. Ms. May explained as a licensing agency, the funds to carryout Bureau mandates are paid solely through application and licensing fees. When new laws are imposed, the Bureau is required to develop a plan to ensure the requirements are adequately funded. Ms. Elder asked the time frame for a fee increase, and Ms. May replied that the regulation process to increase fees will take approximately 18 to 24 months.
	Public Comment: A member of the public commented that the inability to incorporate limits the number of persons who will apply to become licensed professional fiduciaries. Another member of the public commented if the Bureau decides to require certified public accounts (CPAs) be licensed by the Bureau, the only reason would be to collect fees as CPAs are already regulated by the Accountancy Board. Additionally, the budget handout is not able to be viewed on the internet. Finally, the fee increase will be 50-60% and the Bureau will lose licensees.
	9) Legislative Update and Discussion – 
	Mr. Greg Pruden, DCA Legislative Manager, reviewed the legislative calendar and status of bills listed on the agenda and explained the difference between a GC-355 and the requirements of SB 602. He provided a memo which provided samples of each. 
	Ms. Hatch thanked Mr. Pruden for his presentation and expressed concerns that SB 602 infringes on HIPAA laws, the 30-day time frame is insufficient, the cost of follow up on the report will be borne by the conservatee, and other general privacy issues. Mr. Pruden thanked Ms. Hatch for expressing her concerns. 
	Ms. Sanchez Hayden also thanked Mr. Pruden for his research and noted there is no distinction for requirements between professionals and family members who act as conservators. 
	Public Comment: None.
	10) Bureau Updates – 
	 Application Licensing and Enforcement Statistics –
	Ms. May presented newly formatted licensing and enforcement statistics and thanked Ms. Elder for her suggestions for improving the statistical data provided by the Bureau. Ms. Ichikawa, Mr. Moore, and Ms. Hatch stated the handout was easier to follow.
	 Outreach Events – Ms. May attended a SacFAST virtual outreach event with Mr. Moore on January 1, 2022. Ms. May asked the committee to inform the Bureau of any outreach events by email.
	 E-Newsletter – Ms. May stated that the most recent newsletter was distributed to the interested parties list in January. 
	 Strategic Plan –Ms. May provided an update on the current strategic plan goals 4, 5, and 6 and announced that the Bureau will begin planning its 2023 strategic plan in the fall and explained the process of developing the new plan. A survey will be sent to the interested parties list and the committee members will be contacted to complete a phone interview.
	 Website Updates – Ms. May stated there were two significant updates to the Bureau’s website since the last Advisory Committee meeting. The field for data entry of the aggregate value reported by licensees has been updated to allow larger values to appear accurately on the Bureau’s website. Additionally, the Bureau’s licensing page has been updated to include an option for licensees to submit their annual statement by email.
	 Internal Consultant Update – Ms. May stated the Bureau is still reviewing this topic and this will be brought back at a future meeting.
	Public Comment:  None.
	11) Strategic Plan Discussion of Recommendations from the Committee for Goal 3: Communication and Outreach –:
	 Item 3.5 – Collaborate to identify opportunities for participation in outreach events to increase awareness of the Bureau and the fiduciary profession.
	Ms. May began the discussion by asking the Advisory Committee members if they have ideas on how to enhance the Bureau’s outreach efforts. Ms. Sanchez Hayden suggested social workers at hospitals may be a good resource. She also suggested a virtual open house may be a powerful way to build connections. Ms. Nelesen suggested adult protective services (APS) offices. Ms. Ichikwa suggested contacting family justice centers. Ms. Elder agreed with a virtual engagement with agencies who serve the elderly population.
	Public Comment: None.
	12) Proposed Rulemakings Update – 
	Ms. May reported that the Bureau withdrew the retired and inactive license type regulation from the Office of Administrative Law (OAL) to address suggested amendments by OAL. The Bureau plans to revise the proposed regulation and refile it with OAL after another public comment period. 
	Public Comment: None.
	13) Future Agenda Items – Ms. Cuadra noted there were no agenda items requested to be added to a future agenda.
	Public Comment: None.
	14)  Future Meeting Dates
	 Wednesday, June 22, 2022
	 Wednesday, September 14, 2022
	 Wednesday, December 7, 2022
	Committee members did not mention any scheduling conflicts for the future dates and were asked to contact Ms. Cuadra if any conflicts arise.
	Public Comment: None.
	15)  Adjournment – The meeting was adjourned at 11:44 a.m.



Accessibility Report



		Filename: 

		20220914_acm_6.pdf






		Report created by: 

		Klara Flanagan, klara.flanagan@dca.ca.gov


		Organization: 

		





 [Personal and organization information from the Preferences > Identity dialog.]


Summary


The checker found no problems in this document.



		Needs manual check: 2


		Passed manually: 0


		Failed manually: 0


		Skipped: 0


		Passed: 30


		Failed: 0





Detailed Report



		Document




		Rule Name		Status		Description


		Accessibility permission flag		Passed		Accessibility permission flag must be set


		Image-only PDF		Passed		Document is not image-only PDF


		Tagged PDF		Passed		Document is tagged PDF


		Logical Reading Order		Needs manual check		Document structure provides a logical reading order


		Primary language		Passed		Text language is specified


		Title		Passed		Document title is showing in title bar


		Bookmarks		Passed		Bookmarks are present in large documents


		Color contrast		Needs manual check		Document has appropriate color contrast


		Page Content




		Rule Name		Status		Description


		Tagged content		Passed		All page content is tagged


		Tagged annotations		Passed		All annotations are tagged


		Tab order		Passed		Tab order is consistent with structure order


		Character encoding		Passed		Reliable character encoding is provided


		Tagged multimedia		Passed		All multimedia objects are tagged


		Screen flicker		Passed		Page will not cause screen flicker


		Scripts		Passed		No inaccessible scripts


		Timed responses		Passed		Page does not require timed responses


		Navigation links		Passed		Navigation links are not repetitive


		Forms




		Rule Name		Status		Description


		Tagged form fields		Passed		All form fields are tagged


		Field descriptions		Passed		All form fields have description


		Alternate Text




		Rule Name		Status		Description


		Figures alternate text		Passed		Figures require alternate text


		Nested alternate text		Passed		Alternate text that will never be read


		Associated with content		Passed		Alternate text must be associated with some content


		Hides annotation		Passed		Alternate text should not hide annotation


		Other elements alternate text		Passed		Other elements that require alternate text


		Tables




		Rule Name		Status		Description


		Rows		Passed		TR must be a child of Table, THead, TBody, or TFoot


		TH and TD		Passed		TH and TD must be children of TR


		Headers		Passed		Tables should have headers


		Regularity		Passed		Tables must contain the same number of columns in each row and rows in each column


		Summary		Passed		Tables must have a summary


		Lists




		Rule Name		Status		Description


		List items		Passed		LI must be a child of L


		Lbl and LBody		Passed		Lbl and LBody must be children of LI


		Headings




		Rule Name		Status		Description


		Appropriate nesting		Passed		Appropriate nesting







Back to Top
